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DR. AGNES M. SLAYMAN 292

by you to represent you for that grievance or
through SCAA?

As members of any SCAA, PSTA, there's legal
representation that is afforded with that
membership.

Were you aware of any other employees being
asked to sign -- to attest to the hostile work
environment grievance that you were a party to?
I was not. I do not know of anyone else that
was asked to sign.

Were you aware 1f Callie McConnell being asked
to sign?

I was not.

Were you aware of her not declining to be a
part of this grievance?

I was not.

Were you aware of her concerns that she was
being ostrasized for not agreeing to be a a
part of the grievance?

I was not.

And Just for clarity of the record, Callie
McConnell was Dr. Slayman's secretary?

That is correct. Actually, her administrative
assistant.

When was the decision made to submit this
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DR. AGNES M. SLAYMAN 293

September 8th, 2015, grievance, at least by
you?

A: Would have been September the 8th when I signed
that. That was when I committed to filing the
grievance.

Q: When did the conversation start that there
would even be such a grievance?

A I can't recall.

Q: But fair to stay that it -- it hadn't started

as of August 20th, 20137

A I can't recall.
Q: Well, Ms. Williams, we got to have some more
time stamp from that. That's two years 1in

between, so we've got to help Ms. Pike out out
in determining when you first though about when
you were gonna file a hostile work environment
complaint?

A: Look, if it was signed September the 8th, 2015,
T would say sometime in the year of 2015.

MS. POLVI: Those are all my questions.

MR. WINBURN: Okay. I have a couple of follow-ups.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

MS. WILLIAMS - REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. WINBURN:

Q: Did you ever witness Dr. Slayman threaten to

rip Callie McConnell's head -- rip her throat

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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out?

No.

Okay. And you were asked about grievances
filed to you as an HR director and their
outcomes. Do you know if the board -- do you
know of my response from the board in
connection with your grievance?

I did not receive a written response or a
verbal response from the board, only the action
that was taken at the board meetings.

Are you aware of any improvement plan that they
suggested or proposed for Ms. =- Dr. Slayman?
I'm not -- through hearsay but not ---

We don't want ---

Not from actual ---

Okay.

Not from actual documentation.

All right. Who would know that, what the board
proposed? Would that have gone through HR
necessarily?

That would not have because the superintendent
is the employee of the board.

Okay.

So their personnel actions would have taken

place through the sitting body of the board.

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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DR. AGNES M. SLAYMAN 295

Q: All right. And these -- this Exhibit 1 that

we've been talking about, these are your notes?

A: Yes, sir, they are.

Q: And you have read through them?

A Yes, sir.

Q: And you are submitting that they are accurate?

That's your accurate recollection?

A Yes, sir.

Q: Thank you.

MR. WINBURN: That's all I have.

HEARING OFFICER: I've got a couple questions for
you.

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

MS. WILLIAMS - EXAMINATION BY THE HEARING OFFICER;:

HEARING OFFICER: Ms. Williams, being the HR
director, I know that you said that when
Dr. Slayman addressed you in a manner that you
thought was inappropriate, you went back to her
and talked to her, which I think is awesome.
Did you ever contemplate, being the HR
director, going back to her and saying,
Dr. Slayman look, you know, I am hearing these
things, and people are disgruntled about them.
Is there something we can do here to perhaps

help the morale here and make people feel for

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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valued, as opposed to being belittled?

A: I didn't feel comfortable saying that. I truly
didn't. At that point, I could -- T didn't
feel comfortable saying that.

HEARING OFFICER: Were you every afraid that vyou
were going to lose your job?

A: I just didn't know what I was gonna get or the
person that I was gonna get day to day. One
day Dr. Slayman would be the nicest person
ever. Then one day 1f she's upset, she's upset
all day. And it may be something that somebody
else did or someone said. So it was really --
you just didn't know what you was gonna get.

HEARING OFFICER: Did Dr. Slayman ever approach you
about wanting to take a personnel action
against some employee?

A: Against some employee -- vyes. Anna Stroud in
particular, she didn't care for her -- more so.
And part of that, I think, is because Anna
didn't have a degree.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay.

A: And she felt that Anna didn't have a degree,
and Anna was our director of finance.

HEARING OFFICER: Uh-huh.

A And my stance was always Anna had been doing

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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the job for a number of years, and our reports
that -- they would come in and do our audit
reports -- were always excellent reports and in
good standing. So there was always concerns
that because Anna didn't have a degree in -- I
just think that her work merits had just kind
of stood for what they were.

HEARING OFFICER: Uh-huh.

A: Because sometime 1t says equivalency —---

HEARING OFFICER: Uh-huh.

A --—- and your years of experience can sometime
be the equivalency.

HEARING OFFICER: Sure. So did you express those

concerns to Dr. Slayman when she brought those

to you?
A I did not. I did not.
HEARING OFFICER: Did she ever take action against

Anna Stroud?

A Anna submitted like a sexual harassment
complaint, and she did take action against Anna
by -- it's like she accused Anna of making up
the complaint or taking sides with the person
that Anna complained about. And I think when
someone comes and they say that they've been

sexually harassed, that we have to have the

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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empathy, and we also have to stay neutral and
not necessarily be on the victim, the person

that's making the accusation.

HEARING OFFICER: So Ms. Stroud did not make a

sexual harassment claim against Dr. Slayman.
It was against somebody else?

Ac: No. Against a outside contractor.

HEARING OFFICER: Oh, okay.

A: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER: I see. I see.

A Yes. But Anna, in return, got a letter in her
file for making that complaint.

HEARING OFFICER: You were there throughout this
period of time?

A: Yes.

HEARING OFFICER: And you seem to have weathered
that well. How did you manage to handle this
as well as you did? Was 1t because you were
across the building?

A: Yes, ma'am. And honestly though prayer. I had
people praying for me, and we'd have a group of
people who pray and cover me. And truthfully
that's just what I was grown up -- raised 1is
that God covers us, and we have people that

constantly pray and covers us and then surround

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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us so

HEARING OFFICER: And then my next guestion you may
not know, and feel free to tell me you do not
know. Do you, from your own personal
knowledge, know how Ms. Bagley was selected to
do this investigation?

A From what I understand, the board had our
attorneys to bring in an independent person.

HEARING OFFICER: Okavy.

A: Yes, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER: Do vyou have any idea what
Ms. Bagley's qualifications were to do this
investigation?

A: T know that she was a previous superintendent
in a -- in Anderson.

HEARING OFFICER: Uh-huh.

A I think in Anderson 5 and a previous educator.

HEARING OFFICER: And did she have any connection at
all to Chester?

A Not that I'm aware of.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. So would it be fair to say
then that she was an outsider? She was not
well known within Chester.

A Yes, ma'am. Yes, ma'am. I would say that she

was, indeed, an outsider with no connections to

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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Chester.

HEARING OFFICER: So she wasn't privy to all the
political machinations that were going on in
the background here between the sheriff and the
county administrator and that kind of thing?

A: No, ma'am.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. Do vyou, of your own
personal knowledge, know if she talked to
anyone other than the people who signed the
grievance?

A: No, ma'am. That's the only persons that I'm
aware of.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I don't think I have any
further questions.

MR. WINBURN: Just one -- maybe one follow-up.

MS. WILLIAMS - REDIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. WINBURN:

Q: You've been in HR for almost 20 years; is that
right?

A Yes, sir.

Q: So in a scenario like this where vyou got four

or five employees who have a grievance,
obviously, they signed one with their
supervisor, is it advisable for Tthem to
confront the supervisor like an intervention,

like a coup like a mutiny or Option B, elevate

: CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
@ 1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 252-3445 / (800) 822-0896
355 0384

0505




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR.

MS .

MS.

DR. AGNES M. SLAYMAN 301

it to their supervisor and let the process
work, in your view?

It was the latter where do you actually take it
to the person's supervisor and allow them to

follow the processes as stated in policy.

WINBURN: Ckay. That's all I've.
POLVI: I have a follow-up.

WILLIAMS - RECROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. POLVI:

Ms. Williams let's put it in context in terms
of -—- as Chief HR. You have several direct
reports, correct?

That igs correct.

How would you feel 1f every single one of your
direct reports got together, had meetings
talking negatively about you and then all file
a complaint ~against you on the same day
altogether. How would that make you feel?

I'm not certain since it hasn't occurred to me,
so T can't speak to the feeling that I haven't
experienced.

Fair to say that that would be really
surprising if all of your direct reports got
together and filed a complaint on the same day?
I would like to say that I would probably be

disappointed that they didn't speak to me. But

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201

@ CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
» (80%)52652—3445/(800) 822-0896

0385
0506




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

DR. AGNES M. SLAYMAN 302

I have an open-door policy, so I lead by
anybody can come in at any time in the course
of day to share any information with me. I
have constant communication with my team. So
that's extremely important to me is to make
sure I have, you know, a pulse on what's going
on. So I would definitely be disappointed
because I do have a really good relationship
with my team. I'm with them every day and in
the day-to-day operations.

Q: And I agree with you that an open-door policy
is the Dbest practice. And did Dr. Slayman,
indeed, typically have an open door for her
employees that -- be it her direct reports or
even others to come to her?

A Yes.

MS. POLVI: Those are all my questions.

MS. WILLIAMS - EXAMINATION BY THE HEARING OFFICER:

HEARING OFFICER: You just testified that
Dr. Slayman had an open door. Can you tell me
why employees would not honor that open door?

A: Because they didn't feel comfortable going in
to Just share information or to share their
feelings or emotions because they felt like she

couldn't relate or she couldn't understand. So

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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that's a lot of times why they came to my
office 'cause they felt that I listen and I
could empathize and have empathy with their
concerns.

HEARING OFFICER: T have one other gquestion for you.

You know, I can actually recall saying this to

my husband you know. I might have been mad
about something and say, you know, I don't
believe you did that. I could Jjust strangle
you for doing that. I -- do you think that
Dr. Slayman was -= when she made these
comments, do you think that's how she was

saying them?

A: I +think it was a level of frustration and
anger, so it was some seriousness into it as
well. And with her being the supervisor, you
know, it's one thing if somebody is saying, oh,
my god, you know, that person's getting on my
nerves. But when it's the supervisor that's
saying it that leads a whole system of, you
know, a number of employees, you know, we have
to look up to person. And when we say it, it's
our words and, you know, it's like toothpaste.
Once you squeeze it out, you can't put it back

in.

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201

‘(@i" CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
w (80%)52852—3445 / (800) 822-0896

0387
0508




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

DR. AGNES M. SLAYMAN 304

HEARING OFFICER: Yeah.

A

So it's out there then. And if it was one
time, that's one thing. But because it was
repetitive, over and over and over again, and
in a seasoned professional, we have to be --
you have to be mindful of what we say and how
we say 1it. It's because it can impact people
differently any day of the week, vyou know.

People take things differently.

HEARING OFFICER: Yeah, they do. Thank you.

MS.

MS.

POLVI.: And I have a quick -- I apologize. I

know it just -- but it triggered something.

WILLIAMS - RECROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. POLVI:

Q:

With regard to -- you talked about repetitive,
but earlier in your testimony you said only on
one occasion did Dr. Slayman make such a
statement. And then after you told her that
you found it offensive, she apologized and that
never happened again; isn't that true?

To me. That to me.

So 1if other people had simply said that that
was -~ you know, in a joking context wasn't
appropriate, evidenced by what she did with
you, that would have stopped?

I can't speak for what she would have done for

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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other people or to other people. I can only
speak for what happened with me.

Rights. But fair to say that, you know, I
think you -- August 20th, 2013, and then all
the way wup 'til the end of Dr. Slayman's
employment September 30th, 2015 -- or excuse
me - = between August 20th, 2013, and
September 30th, 2015, Dr. Slayman never made
such a repetitive-type statement to you? It
was just only on the one occasion?

Because it was a threat and 1t was a threat
that I actually could have went to the police

department and filed a threat, the level of

threat with the number of witnesses —-- and this
is what I shared with her -- that there are
witnesses to the threat that you made. So, no,

she did not make that comment again because it
was something that, truthfully, if a threat has
been made, by law in state department laws for
a superintendent to even keep their licensure,
we have to file a report. So that's my duty as
the HR person. So I technically could have
filed a report that said that she threatened me
and there were witnesses to the threat.

But the fact of the matter 1s you didn't

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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because you didn't think that she was gonna go
through with it. But it was a colloquial type
of statement that once you addressed a concern
to her, she apologized, one-time thing, never
happened again?

Well, I'm gonna be honest and tell you why I
didn't. Because I have a number of years to
work, and I want to work until I hit 28 years
with the state retirement system.
Professionally, it would not have been the
smart thing for me to do to publicly go ahead
and file a police report against my
superintendent because professionally that can
impact your career.

So it was a ~-- it wasn't that I shouldn't have
done it. It was a professional decision that
I made, that long-term I needed to work and
finish out 28 years. And it's hard for people
to understand why would someone in my level go
and file a complaint against my superintendent.
Police reports are public information, S0

that's something that's public information and

professionally, you know, I'd -- you know, I
want to retire in 28 years. So I didn't want
to stunt my professional ability and

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 252-3445 /7 (800) 822-0896
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opportunities.

And that's an understandable concern. And to
the core fact of the matter is your grievance
became public. It's been well publicized in
the news.

Indeed, it has.

And that hasn't prevented you from getting a
job, has 1t? Dr. Slayman's not done anything
to harm your employment. She actually
recommended you for the capabilities that you
had in performing your Jjobs, and you, indeed,
have had another job in Orangeburg and another

job in Richland; isn't that true?

That 1s correct. But 1if memory serves me
correct -- and, you know, again, I haven't
looked at the -- what was out 1n public
information. I don't -— I can't recall that my
name was singled out but. As you well know
that the wvictims -- if you file a incident

report, your name, as the person that's filing,

is made public, and that is public information.

HEARING OFFICER: Okay. I don't have any further

questions. Do you have any --—-

MR. WINBURN: None from me.

HEARING OFFICER: Nothing else?

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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MS. POLVI: All set. Thanks.
(Off the record.)
(Witness excused.)
HEARING OFFICER: All right. Would you 1let the
court reporter swear you in, please, ma'am.
BROOKE CLINTON, having been duly sworn, testifies as
follows:

MS. CLINTON - DIRECT EXAMINATION BY MR. WINBURN:

Q: Ms. Clinton, will you please state your full

name for the record?

A: Brooke Wilson Clinton.
Q: And where do you work?
A Currently with the Chester County Chamber of

Commerce.

Q: How long have you been there?

A: Two years.

Q: Where were you before that?

A: Chester County School District.

Q: What did you do for the Chester County School
District.

A I was the public information officer.

Q: I think on your desk is a document. It is a
grievance filed September 8th, 2015; is that
right?

A: Uh-huh.

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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So is that a "yes"?

It is.

The court reporter's taking down everything
that you say, so sometimes saw that. Did you
sign that document?

I did.

And in general, for the benefit for the hearing
officer, can you just generally describe why
you filed a grievance along with your
coworkers?

Well, this particular document was signed in
part because we were told that Dr. Slayman

would be possibly put back into her position,

and that was very upsetting because we didn't

feel like it was not an environment that we

could work in, especially me in public
relations. We very much have to be a team and
support everyone. So that was why we signed it

that particular date.

and how did you -- can you describe any --
what -- can you describe what made it a hostile
work environment?

Well, for me it was the -- 1t was incredibly
difficult to work in a situation with a

supervisor who -- gosh, I'm not sure how to

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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word it -- who you never knew which person she
was golng to be. I really -- there were days
it was really very positive, very good ideas,
great things happening. And the next day, it
was very unpredictable, and that's incredibly
stressful. And that was at the beginning af my
working there.

And then as thing progressed, I began to see
things happening that I just didn't agree with
ethically, and I consider that a difficult
situation when your values are in conflict with
your assignment.

You said there'd be good days and bad days?
Uh-huh.

What would make them bad days?

Bad days would be when the superintendent would

be angry, upset, when she would tell us one

thing in the morning, one thing in the
afternoon. When we would have a crisis that
maybe was a crisis, wasn't a crisis. It was

all truly dependent more upon her mood than
maybe the realty of the situation.

And where was vyour office in connect -- well,
in relation to Dr. Slayman's office, Dr. King's

office, and Jeff Gardner's office?

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201

@ CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
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So my office was actually connected to the back
of Dr. Slayman, so her back door was beside my
door.

So were -- 1s it safe to say you were within
earshot of a lot of the conversations ---

Yes, sir.

--— at the time?

Uh-huh.

You mentioned unethical. What do you mean by
that, unethical?

Well, for me, I felt like some of her decisions
were based on emotion and not rational
behavior, so she was doing things that I was
very concerned with putting students in danger.
So I guess when T Say unethical, not -- I'm not
implying she was like stealing money oOr
doing -- not that kind of unethical.

Right.

The unethical in I didn't feel like the mission

of the district, the keeping your students

safe -- and I could give an example 1f you want
that but ---
Yes. Please do.

So we were 1n a meeting one day, and she

disliked our sheriff and, 1in my opinion, had

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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some reason for why she should dislike him.
But I felt 1ike it had escalated. And so we
had 1live cameras 1in our schools. And I
remember making the suggestion that we needed
to give our school resource officers access to
that footage because I'm thinking, as a parent,
if you can give them live feed -- this was not
recordable, so they couldn't have taken it back
and shown it to their friends or -- then maybe
you could save a life 'cause you could zero in
on an active shooter more quickly. And her
comment was, I would never give him, meaning
the sheriff, anything.

And that was one of the most poignant moments
for me was realizing that her decisions were
based on her dislike of an individual and not
focused on the safety of our children.

When she made that comment, was she looking at
you when she made 1t? Or was it at a meeting?
We were in a cabinet meeting, senior cabinet.
And was it in response to your suggestion ---
Yes, sir.

--- that you open up the footage and allow the
sheriff to have access?

It can be seen on a tablet, so my suggestion
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was we give the -- at the school officer a
tablet with a live feed on it.

Ckay. So school officer, or what's commonly
called an SRO, would have a tablet, and on that
tablet would be live monitoring, like ---

The different camera angles —--—-

--~- footage of the different cameras?

-—-— of the whole school.

So you could see the whole thing all at once?
Uh-huh.

He or she?

Uh-huh.
Okay. And why would that be -- if that -- 1if
they had -- if she agreed with your suggestion,

why would have that have been giving access to
the sheriff?

I don't know. I guess they were his employees
at the time. This was still the school
resource officers ---

Okay.

-—-— not the school safety officer.

So this is pre-Defender?

Uh-huh.

Sorry.

I don't know. Maybe she was worried they would
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have somehow used the footage against her or --
I don't know what her reasoning. I didn't ask
her, to be fair.

Sure.,

But as a parent, I was very scared, and I just
realized we had gotten to a place where that
was more important to be in conflict with him
and to maybe really think through what would be
in the best interest of a student in an active
shooting situation.

S0 as the public information officer, were you
essentially the spokesperson for the district?
I did, but I would usually try to run it past
the superintendent to make sure she was okay
with something, and she was always very good to
help me with that, make sure I was -- had
worded 1t <correctly. If I need to get
something from the lawyer, the attorney, she
would do that for me. I never directly
contacted them. But T always had support if I
needed 1it, in other words.

Was there ever an occasion where she asked you
to say something to the public that vyou
disagreed with or that you thought was

inaccurate?
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In August of -- gosh, I forgot the date now.
I would have to recollect. It was August, I
guess, of 2016. So right before she was put on
leave; 1s that right? Anyway, it was within
weecks of her being put on leave. She asked me
to put together some sort of public media event
to introduce the school safety officers. These
would be the new Defender Services.

And so T organized a luncheon with our
principals and our media, and we invited any

first responders in the area that wanted to

come . Of course, the sheriff's office didn't
come . But we did have some first responders
come. We had all of our principals. It was at

Louisville High School.

And so the Defender Services officers were
there. They introduced themselves. Of course,
this was all part of the plan. My PR plan was
if maybe we tell parents who these officers
are, they'll feel Dbetter that they're not
technically SROs. And so these folks stood up.
They said their name, their background. Some
of them have been military. And I will admit,
I was standing there thinking some of these

folks don't exactly look physically qualified.
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They just didn't look they were fit, ready for
the job.

S0 anyway, when it was over, of course, the
media's ready to take their group picture, get
their names. And then I was told by the
superintendent we can't release those names.
And I was 1like, well that's the purpose of
being here. And she said something to the
effect of, we're scared the sheriff will go
after them personally. We're not gonna release
that. Just don't do it.

So I had to go back to the media at this media
event and say any notes you just took, hold
them. I can't really tell you why, but don't
do that. And then that afternoon she came in
my office very casually, and she said, well,

those aren't the real people that we're gonna

use. We Jjust used them as a fill-in for this
event. And I was mortified because I had
never, never been told that. Would never have

purposefully lied to my media contacts.

And were there parents there?

If they were parents, they were parents like me
that just happened to be there as work. But I

don't remember there been parent reps invited.
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The community that would have been teachers,
principalé ——

Don't remember teachers being there.

Are first responders?

Principals were there, We i1invited first
responders. I don't think anyone from the
sheriff's would have come, for obvious reasons
but so ---

Do you remember how you framed the invitation?
In other words, did you label it something,
meet the SROs, or anything like that?

I would have to pull it back up to sece. And I
guess I don't even have access. It on e-mail.
But to my knowledge, it was publicized as get
to know the S$SOs. That's what I told the media
contact, you know.

Right.

And T had even discussed with him, I think this
will make you feel better 1if you get to meet
the real people and understand why we're going
with them, that these are people with military
backgrounds and -- but anyway, when the people
that were introduced were introduced, they were
employees of Defender Services, but they were

not the people that we got.
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Is it fair to say they were stand-ins?

They were stand-ins.

And so at the time when -- in general, a big
picture, the move from SROs through the county
or the sheriff or whoever =-- whomever was
supplying them to Defender, was that a
controversial issue among community members, or
how would you describe it?

It was. It was very difficult. As I mentioned
earlier, I have always felt 1like there was
reason for the district to have issue with the
sheriff department. I really do feel way.
There were some things that were done and said
that I don't think were very good. But it
escalated. And instead of coming to the table
and saying we need to talk this out, because at
the end of the day, the children are what we
have to focus on. These are our students. To
my knowledge, that was not done. So what
happened is ---

What was not done? I'm Sorry.

The ~- 1t escalated, and the communication
ceased. So the sheriff was cut out of
decisions on SROs. Senior staff was cut out.
Principals were cut out. So the next thing we
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know, I've got -- we're in the Charlotte
television area -- I've got Charlotte
television stations beating down my door

because the sheriff has released press releases

to them saying you've just kicked out our SROs.

Are you crazy? We're in the 21st Century. Why
have you done this?

And I had no way to respond because I couldn't
say, well, we met with you because he's over
there saying I wanted a meeting with me. So it
was a disaster for PR for me incredibility
stressful. I had one reporter that told me she
was gonna follow me to my house. I mean, it
was that aggressive where they just felt like

how could this possibly be in the best interest

of your students? Parents were Dblowing up
Facebook. Are you 1insane? Why would you do
this?
Okay.

And, you know, the sad part is, even if we had
good reasons because we didn't meet, the
communication broke down, we couldn't even
release those reasons.

You were never aware of any reason why the

sheriff was cut out of these discussions?
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Not at that point. Now, initially T know what
fractured -- you know, what caused the
fracture.

Okay. Can you share that?

I can. The -- to my knowledge, the sheriff
came to the superintendent. He offered to put

in undercover officers in our schools and look

for weaknesses. She agreed to that. He did
that. He came back and gave a report of some
kind. But in the meantime, he released the

weaknesses to the press.

So all of a sudden, we find out you've Jjust
told everybody 1f you want to get into this
high school, you just ask to use the bathroom.
She was very upset, and I think she had a right
to Dbe. That was -~ 1t put our kids in
jeopardy.

So she asked to meet with him, and he sent an

officer instead of himself. So that's what
started it. But T was told at a point that
they had made amends, but I don't -- I never

saw that happen. It just got worse.
Ever an occasion where she berated you
privately, publically, in front of colleagues?

The thing 1is it was -- we had an wunusual
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relationship because I was her PR person. My
job was to promote the district. And in doing
that, I had to promote her. So T had a little

different role than maybe some other people.

One of the things she was good at -- and I
don't mean that at a compliment -- she could
hold you on a hook and scare you. So, for

example, I remember one time I get an e-mail
from her, and it said something to the effect
of I'm really upset with you. See me. Okay.
Well, then I couldn't get access to her. She
was 1in meetings where -- we knew this. So T
had to wait all -- a very conscientious person.
I worried. I worried. What have I done? What
have I done? What have I done?

I go in the next day, meet with her privately.
She went up one end and down the other. Not
screaming, not cussing, not -- nothing like

that. But just, you know, I expect you to have

your work, you know, right. And I don't want
anything -- and I finally -- I said, what did
I do wrong? And she sald you misspelled a
word. And I said, what word did I misspe;l?

And she told me, and I said I didn't misspell

that. There's two ways to spell it, an English
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version and an American version.
And she said, oh, okay. Well, just know in the

future, make sure you don't misspell anything.

Bye. So it was that kind of -- and then she
was fine. She was nice to me the rest of the
day. It was no problem. But she had caused
me —---

I'm sorry. Yes?

She had caused me angst, turmoil, whatever you
want to call it Jjust because she knows I'm a
natural worrier and I wanted to do it right.
And that was very early on in my time with her.
5o anyway -~ and there were other times, you
know, we'd be somewhere and she might say -- I

remember one name 1in particular she made the

comment -- vyou know, this was during the
sheriff's debacle -- you know how awful our PR
is. And I felt 1like saying, well, I can't

control our PR if I don't have positive things
to say when you're making decisions that are
counteracting the sheriff who's a PR master and

he knows to go to the media and he knows to

tell parents your kids aren't safe. How do you
combat that? There's nothing I can say. I'm
in a no-win situation. So those kind of things
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happened but

Did you witness her making any threats to any

other -- to you or to the others?
She -- it's in my whole wentire career 1is
probably the most -- one of the most stressful

moments of my career and that is we had a staff
meeting, and it was following a board meeting.
And in that board meeting, our HR director,

Shawn Williams, had thanked the board for

coming to an HR event. It was very casual.
You know, thank you for coming. I mean, 1t
wasn't anything over the board -- over the top.
So anyway, during our cabinet meeting that

followed that board meeting, Dr. Slayman was
very agitated. And, again, sometimes she was
happy in the board -- in our cabinet meetings.
This day she was highly agitated. She got more
and more angry. And I will never forget it.
She told Shawn she should not have spoken to
the board, she looked at her, and in a very
deliberate voice, she said, I will slit your
throat if you ever do that again. I remember
leaving that meeting. I was trying to type,
and T could not type. My hands were shaking so

hard. I've never gotten over 1it.
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Did it -- did you share vyour thoughts with
anyone at that time?

I checked on Shawn. T wés very worried about
her. She had gone back and talked with, I
believe her director of benefits, benefits
coordinator. So she kind of had a plan. So,
to my knowledge, she went and -- went back to

Dr. Slayman and basically told her if you were

any other employee, you could get fired. You
could get arrested. You cannot talk to someone
like this.

After that point after that statement, did you
witness her making threats of others or talking
about others in a threatening way?

She used a lot of threatening language. And
I -- and she would use it in different ways.
Sometimes she would use it casually like you
might say, now, if you tell somebody, I'm gon'

kill you. Just like you would joke at a party.

That was not uncommon. But she would also be
very agitated. Her face would be red or
flushed, whichever. And she would say, I'll

crucify him, which for me, that's a little on
the religious side, so it always bothered me.

So when she would say I would crucify him, that
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bothered me. And she would be talking about an

individual that she was mas at. I mean, so 1t
was -- she used that kind of language quite a
lot.

And the crucify comment that you're referring
to came after the Shawn Williams ---

No. This was just part of her vernacular.
Well, I'm sorry. So the Shawn Williams
incident that vyou Jjust described occurred.
Then they, let's say the example you mentioned
about I will crucify that person, did that
happen after or before?

I don't remember. She just used it a lot. So
it was just part ---

OCkay.

It would just be like me saying common phrases

in my vocabulary. It was a common phrase in
her wvocabulary. She would use them in
different ways. The incident with Shawn was

the one time I ever felt the most wupset,
threatened, horrified +to the point that I
called and said are you okay.

And I guess I'll ask it one other way.

I'm sorry. I don't -- I'm sorry.

No. That's okay.
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I just ---
Based on the time frame -- and vyou may not
know -- do you know whether Dr. Slayman ceased

making threats or using threétening language
after the threat to Shawn Williams?

Oh, gosh, no. She wused 1t throughout our
entire relationship.

Okay.

Yeah. And she would say things to me like, vyou
know, take this to vyour grave or I'll, vyou
know, kill you i1f you say it, but I never --
she never threatened me the way she threatened
Shawn. Never like that.

And in your -~ how long were you involved --
were you in the school district, an employee of
the school district?

It's kind of a weird story. I worked for the
Olde English Consortium, and it was based at
the school district. So I actually started
there -- I really can't remember, but I was
there, I guess, it was two thousand maybe four.
So even though I was in the school district, T
was paid by the school district, worked for the
Olde English Consortium.

You were in the school realm?
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Yeah. And I was in -- I had a office there,
but I wasn't -- I didn't directly report to the
superintendent. I just, at that time, did a

little bit of PR consulting for Dr. Campbell,
the superintendent at that time. But I only
worked for Dr. Slayman for about three years.
Have you ever seen any other supervisor that
you've had over the years make any kind of
threats like Dr. Slayman has made?

I have not.

Before or since working with Dr. Slayman?

I have not. Not to that -- not like that, no.
Okay.

I've heard other supervisors use curse words
and foul languages but never ever what I saw
that day with Ms. Williams.

And would you describe in general terms —-- what

you say is the up and down as kind of mood

swings?
I don't know. I think it was more like --
she's Jjust a very good manipulator, so she

could use her mood to manipulate you into
feeling a certain way, good or bad, to get you
to do what you needed to do.

The e-mail you described earlier about -- I
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don't know what you testified to but
essentially I'm ~- the e-mail ---

Uh~huh.

-—-—- meant I need to talk to you? And then you
wait -- it was a day. You had to wait. Is
there any doubt in your mind that that was
intentional, making you wait?

I think so. And it was Jjust -- you know, I was
thinking -- I was driving down the road this

morning, and I remembered one day that it

really hurt me. I remember I got a phone call
at lunch that -- my mother was at the doctor's
office in Chester. And she called and she
said, they're -- they think I've had a heart

attack and I may be on the brink of having one.
I called Dr. Slayman. I said I need to go with
my mom. I can't find my dad. And she said
okay. No problem. Go.

So she knew I was following the ambulance to --
was 1t Providence? -- whatever the heart
hospital is in Columbia. Going down 77
worrying. And then all of a sudden the phone
rings and it's her. And she's saying I need to
you call so-and-so and so-and-so 'cause I'm to

busy. And you know I'm in a car following my
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mother's ambulance and that's what you do.

So 1t was an emotional -- and, of course, 1
went yes, ma'am. And I just kept driving. You
know, so it was that kind of -- you know, and

when we adopted my daughter, she Jjust quit
speaking to me. And she came out -- I remember
I was standing beside my =-- one of our office
administrators, and she asked the office
administrator to come proof a speech. And the
office administrator just looked at me. What
do I do? And I said I'll walk in there. And
I walked in, and I said, why would you do that?
And she said, because you're on FMLA. I said,
but I'm in the building working. FMLA says I
can come and go.

But I felt like I was being punished because I
had adopted a child and I was out. And it
wasn't that she hated my child, I don't think.

It was because I was out. And that was, you

know -- we want you to be there. And so it was
just that kind of emotional -= and the

embarrassing thing is, vyou know, that happens
and everybody in the office sees 1it. And
they're just like (demonstrating).

And it's Just hard and it's hurtful. And, like
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I said, I was 1in a role where I had to try to
support her and it just hurt.

Do you -- you mentioned FMLA. Did you have any
interaction with Dr. Slayman regarding FM -~
Anna Stroud's FMLA?

The only thing I can tell vyou 1is, again, I
think this goes back to the manipulation. And
I just remember one time she told me that Anna
did not have it. That -- and I truly don't
remember the whole conversation. She just said
she didn't have it. And I was shocked. And I
was like, what? She told me she did. Well,
she didn't.

And then after all this happened, I found out
Anna most definitely did have FMLA. So it Jjust
hurt that, again, why would vyou tell me
something? Was 1t to try +to break that
friendship or to coworkership or whatever with
her? I never -- I don't know.

Do you remember -- the FMLA issue with Anna
Stroud, do you remember a time frame that that
occurred?

I truly don't. It was not too long before this
whole thing happened, but I don't -- I couldn't

tell you for sure when it was.
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About a year maybe? You don't know?

I just couldn't swear to that.

Fair.

I'm sorry.

Any other occasions that you could think of
where you felt belittled by Dr. Slayman in an
inappropriate way?

You know, 1t was so strange because honestly
she would come into my office in the morning
and she might say, you know, I think I might
hire Alice - whatever her name was a
Louisville -- to maybe do PR this summer. I
just might hire her. I just like, well, go for
it. She'd come back the afternoon and she's
like, you know I was kidding. Okay.

So 1t was more of that kind of thing. You
know, but in the flip side, there were times
when she sent me really nice notes and told me
nice things and gave me encouragement and gave
me good ideas. So it was this (demonstrating).
Just for the record, you made a roller coaster
motion with your hand?

Roller coaster, yeah.

Okay. Right. Your decision to sign the

grievance along with the other coworkers, do
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you regret that decision? Do you stand by the
decision? How do you feel about it now?

I don't regret it. One of the things that was
really hard for me, I did not know the depth of
what was happening to some of the other senior
staff members, as in the associlate
superintendent.

Can I -- and what do you mean by that? What do
you mean depth?

I didn't know how physically sick some of them
were. I did not know -- let me back up.

I didn't know how she had done some things
behind the scenes wuntil all this began to
happen. When we found out after Ms. Bagley's
investigation 1is when we really began to say,
well, I was told this. What? Well, I was told
this. Like with FMLA paperwork, what? Why
would she tell me that?

And it was very hurtful, very shocking for me.
I began to realize she had sort of pegged us

and figured out what were our weaknesses, what

were our strengths. She knew my weaknesses
were my children. I'm loyal. I'm
conscilentious. I worry. And that's a weakness

very easily.
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I hgve that same weakness.

And so when we had gotten to this point of the
grievance, the thought of her coming back, I
knew I would have to leave. I didn't want to
leave my Jjob. T knew I could never work for
her again because I couldn't trust her. And I

can't do PR for somebody I can't trust. I just

cant.
So that is why I signed this. It was not =--
you know, when -- if this date had been a month

prior, I don't know that I would have signed it
because didn't know everything I knew in the
month between when she was put on leave and
when this happened.

Okay.

MR. WINBURN: I think that's all I have.

MS.

CLINTON - CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MS. POLVI:

Q:

So I'll pick right back up. So based on your
testimony that you Jjust gave Ms. Clinton, you
essentially just =-- and I'm paraphrasing my
conclusion from your testimony, but essentially
said that you would not have filed that hostile
work environment but for what other people were
telling you; 1s that accurate?

No. I filed this understanding that she was
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@ CREEL COURT REPORTING, INC.
e (80%)82852-3445/(800) 822-0896

0417
0538




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

DR. AGNES M. SLAYMAN 334

coming back. That was what'Mr.—— our lawyer
told us, Mr. Nichols, that it was understood
that she was probably gonna be brought back.
So if I misunderstood that, so be it. It was
not that I was denying I had a hostile work
environment. Tt was just that I really truly,
at that point, the thought that she would come
back, I couldn't work for her.

Well, let's put this picture together of what
you described as a roller-coaster hostile work
environment.

Uh~huh.

Do you deny sending Dr. Slayman a birthday card
just prior in July 2015°?

I don't. No.

Did you share pictures of your kids with
Dr. Slayman, including your newly adopted baby
daughter?

I did.

So you felt close enough with her to share
those personal things?

I did.

And didn't just before, again, vyou filed a
complaint didn't Agnes, Dr. Slayman, and her

husband Rob make superhero masks for your
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children?

I think she told me she was going to. I don't

remember getting them. But I'm not -- T
don't -- I really don't remember. We talked
about 1it. I definitely remember that. But I
don't remember them getting them. Maybe they

did. I don't ---

Would you contest that you sent an e-mail of
your children with the mask in ‘pictures to
Dr. Slayman?

I truly just don't remember.

And is that the type of person who'd be giving
you a hostile work environment when she's
taking time out of her own personal time to
make masks for your kids?

I really -- I'd like to see that e-mail, if you
don't mind sharing it.

It's not already 4in the record, so I can't.
But I mean, are -- you are aware of her ---

I don't remember that.

--—- making masks for your children?

I don't remember that, so I'd like to see it if
it exists 'cause I don't remember it. But
we -- I remember her saying something to the

effect 'cause T didn't know she was artistic.
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And I was 1like, well, that's cool. So I
remember that part of the conversation. I just

don't remember getting it.

But, no, she -- the week that this happened,
she saw my kids. I mean, it's ~-- that's what
I'm telling you is a roller coaster. That's

why it was so hard. That's why I probably have
taken 1t harder than anybody.

Q: In context of you filing a grievance, didn't
you realize that this was gonna ruin
Dr. Slayman's career?

MR. WINBURN: Objection.

A (Witness nods head.)

Q: And that's the same person who just made masks
for your children?

HEARING OFFICER: Rephrase your question, please.

MS. POLVI: Happy to.

Q: Let's talk about -- it's a sad time in your
personal life. I'm sorry to have to bring it
up . But do you recall that your home burned
down?

A: Well, it caught on firé. It didn't burn.

Q: Caught on fire?

A: Uh-huh.

Q: And that was around the time you started with
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the district, was 1t not, 20147

Uh-huh.

And you didn't have any accrued leave time, as
a new employee, did you?

Well, they actually changed the rules somewhere

around that time. They changed it from where
you got it at the beginning to -- but I'd have
to go back in my personnel file, 'cause I had

been with +the district, so I really don't
remember.

But as a new employee, you didn't have leave
time, and Dr. Slayman gave you the time you
needed to take care of that personal emergency,
didn't she?

T think we'd have to double-check those
records, because really had been working there.
But she was kind to me during that time. I
will definitely agree to that, as far as -- but
I wasn't out a tremendous amount.

And Dr. Slayman let you come and go 1f your
family was sick, did she not?

Well, I would take sick time; yes.

She let you work from home when your children
were sick?

I had sick time; yes.
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And you used, actually, doing work from home,
not wusing your sick time at Dr. Slayman's
allowance; was that not true?

I wouldn't really agree with that other than --
unless you want to say when she would call me
at 6:00 or 7:00 o'clock at night, I'd be
working then wouldn't count that as paid time
S0

And during those same times, Dr. Slayman
encouraged you when you needed to spend time
with your children, during school days, vyou
were allowed to leave to do that, weren't you?
Like to go to an assembly; yes.

There's a time frame that you were suffering
from some vertigo, right?

Uh-huh. Around that same time the house
burned; vyes.

And Dr. Slayman allowed you to take time off as
needed, didn't she?

Uh-huh.

Sorry. For the record

Yes. But I do think I had some time there. So
I'd -- I think you'd have to check to check my
personnel record.

And there weren't any times that Dr. Slayman

1230 Richland Street / Columbia, SC 29201
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said you couldn't take care of those personal
needs?

No, huh-uh.

So let's talk about how you described that you
were upset by these circumstances. Do vyou
recall going to Dr. Slayman's office on
September 7th, 20157

I don't. You'd have to tell me what that was.
Did you go into Dr. Slayman's office saying
that you were praying for her, worried about
her best exam?

On what date again?

September 7th, 2015.

If I did, I did. I had taken her to the doctor

the week that she got put on leave and took her

after hours. She was worried about it. Yes,
I was worried about it. So if I did, I did.
I just don't remember. But I definitely agree.

I had taken her.

And after this grievance was filed, including
by you, didn't you go to Dr. Slayman's office
and tell her they've said really =-- some bad
things about you?

I do not remember saying that to her. No,

ma'am.
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And did you go to Dr. Slayman's office and tell
her, I know they're not true?

I did not tell her that; no.

And did you go to Dr. Slayman and say that
everybody else was blaming her for things that
you were concerned about?

I did not tell her that. No, ma'am.

And did Dr. Slayman tell you that she couldn't

discuss that with you?

She -- I have some vague recollection about the
breast cancer. But I don't even know if she
had it. It was something with a test she had
to take to her doctor 1like -- but that's the

only thing I remember that we discussed.

Do you recall driving Dr. Slayman to the CMC
Hospital up in Charlotte?

That's what I'm talking about. She had a disk
that she had to take, and she was worried about
drifting. And I did volunteer to take her. I
was worried about her getting it there. She
was upset, and she doesn't like to drive 1in
traffic she's not used to. Yes.

And that was a kind gesture on your part.
Thank vyou. And I had to have my kids with me.

And we all went. It was after hours.
